JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

From: Street, Jennifer (DOS) <Jennifer.Street@dos.ny.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 4:24 PM

To: JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah; Herter, Jeff (DOS)

Cc: Maraglio, Matthew (DOS); Wojtowicz, Stephanie A (DOS)

Subject: RE: March 2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or attachments. /\
Hi Sarah,

We have been able to locate the report that you reference but | want to make you aware that it was never finalized or
adopted, and is not part of the Somerset LWRP.

A copy of the draft document can be obtained through a FOIL request at: https://dos.ny.gov/foil. In your request, make
sure to state that you are requesting an electronic copy of the Draft March 2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study &
Master Plan for Somerset New York, and identify the Office of Planning, Development and Community Infrastructure.
We should be able to get that out you quickly.

Sincerely,

Jennifer L. Street

Coastal Resources Specialist 3

Chief, Consistency Review Unit - CZM

New York State Coastal Management Program

New York State Department of State

Office of Planning, Development & Community Infrastructure
99 Washington Avenue, Suite 1010, Albany, NY 12231
0:518.474.7247 | C: 518.417.9235

Jennifer.Street@dos.ny.gov

General Federal Consistency Inquiries: CR@dos.ny.gov
www.dos.ny.gov

Follow us on Twitter/Instagram: @nysdos

Like us on facebook

From: JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah <Sarah.Weatherbee@tetratech.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Street, Jennifer (DOS) <Jennifer.Street@dos.ny.gov>; Herter, Jeff (DOS) <Jeff Herter@dos.ny.gov>
Subject: FW: March 2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York

Some people who received this message don't often get email from sarah.weatherbee@tetratech.com. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

unexpected emails.

Hello,



| see that Matt is on vacation. Can either of you help me? | am looking for a copy of the March 2021 Waterfront Park
Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York prepared by Wendall, in order to address ORES deficiency
comments received on our 94-c Application (Matter No. 22-00026) for my client AES.

Thank you!

Sarah Weatherbee, PWS | Renewable Energy Project Manager

This message, including any attachments, may include privileged, confidential and/or inside information. Any distribution or use of this communication by anyone other than the
intended recipient is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender by replying to this message and then delete it from
your system.

From: JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 9:33 AM

To: matthew.maraglio@dos.ny.gov

Subject: March 2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York

Hello Matt,

| left a voicemail but wanted to follow up via email. Whichever works best for you. | am looking for a copy of the March
2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York prepared by Wendall, in order to address
ORES deficiency comments received on our 94-c Application (Matter No. 22-00026) for my client AES. Please let me
know if | can have access or receive a copy.

Thanks in advance!

Sarah Weatherbee, PWS | Renewable Energy Project Manager
Pronouns: she, her, hers
Direct +1 (207) 358-2400 | Mobile +1 (727) 550-7598 | Sarah.Weatherbee@TetraTech.com

Tetra Tech, Inc. | Leading with Science®| Renewable Energy Services
451 Presumpscot St. | Portland, ME 04103 | tetratech.com

'i Climate positive and carbon negative by 2030. Read more

Tt | TETRA TECH

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

From: NYS DOS FOIL Records Access Center <dosny@govqga.us>
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 9:10 AM

To: JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

Subject: FOIL Records Request :: R0O00091-071323

You don't often get email from dosny@govga.us. Learn why this is important

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or attachments. /\

Dear Sarah Jarquin Weatherbee,

This message confirms receipt of your FOIL request. Your request was received in this office on 7/13/2023 and given the
reference number R0O00091-071323 for tracking purposes. You requested:

“Dear Records Access Officer: Please email the following records if possible: Draft March 2021 Waterfront Park
Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York Jennifer L. Street , Coastal Resources Specialist 3, and |
communicated on 7/12/23 and she indicated that we should identify the Office of Planning, Development and
Community Infrastructure about this request, This is a time sensitive matter to address ORES deficiency comments
received on our 94-c Application (Matter No. 22-00026) for the applicant (AES). We appreciate a timely response.
Thank you in advance, Sarah Weatherbee”

We will provide you with an acknowledgment letter within 5 business days.

Sincerely,

NYS Department of State

To monitor the progress or update this request please log into the FOIL Records Access Center.

=




JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

From: NYS DOS FOIL Records Access Center <dosny@govqga.us>
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 1:11 PM

To: JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

Subject: Acknowledgment :: R0O00091-071323

You don't often get email from dosny@govga.us. Learn why this is important

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or attachments. /\

x

RE: FOIL Records Request of July 13, 2023, Reference # R000091-071323
Dear Sarah Jarquin Weatherbee,
The NYS Department of State received a FOIL request from you on July 13, 2023. You requested:

"Dear Records Access Officer:
Please email the following records if possible:
Draft March 2021 Waterfront Park Feasibility Study & Master Plan for Somerset New York

Jennifer L. Street, Coastal Resources Specialist 3, and | communicated on 7/12/23 and she indicated that we should
identify the Office of Planning, Development and Community Infrastructure about this request,

This is a time sensitive matter to address ORES deficiency comments received on our 94-c Application (Matter No. 22-
00026) for the applicant (AES).

We appreciate a timely response.
Thank you in advance,
Sarah Weatherbee"

Your request has been forwarded to the appropriate program area(s) to identify documents that are responsive to your
request and which may be made available pursuant to all applicable provisions of the Freedom of Information Law.

A determination as to whether your request is granted or denied will be reached in approximately 20 business days or
we will notify you in writing if the responsible program area(s) should require additional time to locate, assemble and
review documents that may be responsive to your request. You can expect to receive a response related to your request
by August 10, 2023.

Please note that, pursuant to Article 6 of the Public Officers Law, a charge may be applied to your request, including the
actual cost of the medium used to respond to your Freedom of Information Law request and/or other related costs.
When responsive records have been identified, you will be informed of any cost and how payment should be made.

Sincerely,

NYS Department of State



To monitor the progress or update this request please log into the FOIL Records Access Center




JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

To: Rivard, Linda
Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - Coastal Consistency Preview

From: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 11:37 AM

To: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>

Cc: Krupitsky, Marika (DOS) <Marika.Krupitsky@dos.ny.gov>; Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@aes.com>;
patrick.green@aes.com; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>; Beth Morss <BMorss@youngsommer.com>;
Steven D. Wilson <swilson@youngsommer.com>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - Coastal Consistency Preview

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or attachments. /\
Thank you for letting us know Linda,

We will await an updated package.

David Newman
Coastal Resources Specialist 2

New York State Department of State

Office of Planning, Development & Community Infrastructure
99 Washington Avenue, Suite 1010, Albany, NY 12231
518-474-9039 | david.newman@dos.ny.gov

www.dos.ny.gov

From: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 11:29 AM

To: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

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

David - | wanted to follow up with you to let you know that we will be addressing all the requirements you identified in
your letter dated July 28, 2023. Please forgo preparing your initial comments until we resubmit the materials and forms
you have requested. We anticipate sending the updated package of materials to you and Marika for review later this
month.

Thank you,
Linda



From: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 2:12 PM

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
Dear Linda,

Please see the attached letter requesting necessary data and information that the Department of State would need to
assess and undertake its review of the coastal zone effects for the proposed activity. As indicated in the letter the
information provided to date is insufficient for the Department of State to undertake a formal review of the proposed
federal permitting activity pursuant to 15 CFR 930 Subpart D. Specifically, 15 CFR § 930.58 outlines the necessary data
and information that must be provided to the Department State before we would undertake a consistency review. Our
website (https://dos.ny.gov/federal-consistency-review-projects-requiring-federal-permits-or-authorizations) also
provides information for projects requiring federal permits or authorizations.

My suggestion would be allow us a few weeks to prepare comments based on the information you have provided. These
comments would outline the types of data and information that we would likely need to fully evaluate the consistency
of the proposed federal permitting activity with the enforceable policies of the New York State Coastal Management
Program. The enforceable polices would be those of the Federally approved Town of Somerset Local Waterfront
Revitalization Program (https://dos.ny.gov/location/town-somerset-local-waterfront-revitalization-program).

Please let me know how you intend to proceed and if we should forgo preparing comments until such time that you
have provided all necessary data and information or if you would like us to prepare comments that could be addressed
in your formal submission.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss further please let me know.

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

Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 5:39 PM

To: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

Cc: Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@aes.com>; patrick.green@aes.com; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>;
Beth Morss <BMorss@youngsommer.com>; Steven D. Wilson <swilson@youngsommer.com>; Krupitsky, Marika (DOS)
<Marika.Krupitsky@dos.ny.gov>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - Coastal Consistency Preview
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You don't often get email from linda.rivard @tetratech.com. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

unexpected emails.

David and Marika - Please note that the Facility wetland impacts are less than 0.1 acre and as such we anticipate to
qualify for NWP 51, which would not require USACE Pre-Construction Notification. Considering that we would not have a
USACE submittal, you may consider this request as initiation of the coastal consistency review for the project.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need additional information on the proposed project.

Thank you,
Linda

From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 9:45 AM

To: 'Newman, David (DOS)' <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

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

David - We appreciate your update on the status of the review. We look forward to receiving NYSDOS comments on the
proposed project.

Thank you,
Linda

From: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 8:00 AM

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
Good morning Linda,

Thank you for your email. | will be passing the information you provided over to my colleague Marika Krupitsky to review
and provide you with comments regarding data and information we would be looking for in a formal submission with
your application to the Army Corps of Engineers.

David Newman
Coastal Resources Specialist 2

New York State Department of State
Office of Planning, Development & Community Infrastructure
99 Washington Avenue, Suite 1010, Albany, NY 12231

3



518-474-9039 | david.newman@dos.ny.gov
www.dos.ny.gov

From: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>

Sent: Thursday, July 27,2023 7:37 AM

To: Newman, David (DOS) <David.Newman@dos.ny.gov>

Cc: Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@aes.com>; patrick.green@aes.com; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>;
Beth Morss <BMorss@youngsommer.com>; Steven D. Wilson <swilson@youngsommer.com>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - Coastal Consistency Preview

You don't often get email from linda.rivard@tetratech.com. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

unexpected emails.

Good morning David,

Checking in to see if you have had a chance to review the materials provided for Somerset Solar. Please let us know if
you have any questions or would like to discuss the project further with us.

Best,
Linda

From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 5:29 PM

To: david.newman@dos.ny.gov

Cc: peggy.grant@aes.com; patrick.green@aes.com; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>; Beth Morss
<BMorss@youngsommer.com>; Steven D. Wilson <swilson@youngsommer.com>

Subject: Somerset Solar Facility - Coastal Consistency Preview

David,

Thank you for offering to review the Somerset Solar Facility (Facility) plans in regard to the site being located within the
state’s designated coastal zone along the southern shore of Lake Ontario. The AES Corporation, Inc. (the Applicant) is
proposing to develop a 125-megawatt solar facility on the site of the former coal plant, Somerset Station, located in the
Town of Somerset, Niagara County. A 94-c permit application for major renewable energy facility (Application) was filed
with the Office of Renewable Energy Siting (ORES) on April 7, 2023 (Matter No. 22-00026). We have received a set of
deficiency comments from ORES, which we are currently working to address, with the intent to file our response to
ORES in early August 2023.

Wetlands information for the Facility is attached, including Exhibit 14 that describes wetlands on the site and Figure 14-2
which shows the type of activities proposed in and around wetlands. A site plan of the layout is attached that provides
the overall plans, which are allocated into 10 different development areas.

As noted in Exhibit 14, the Applicant has sited Facility infrastructure to avoid and minimize wetlands impacts to the
maximum extent practicable (see Exhibit 14, section 14(f), Minimization of Impacts on NYS Wetlands and Adjacent
Areas). Major activity within New York State-jurisdictional and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) jurisdictional
wetlands on the Facility Site is limited to 0.05 acres, with the expectation that the Facility will qualify for a Nationwide
Permit (NWP) (likely NWP 51) and would comply with the NWP General and Regional Conditions, and New York State

4



Section 401 Water Quality Certification conditions during construction and operation. The wetland impacts table is
provided as Table 14-1 of Exhibit 14 (see page 13 of the document, page 17 of the pdf).

As we are working through some layout adjustments to address ORES deficiency comments, we can send over the
updated Exhibit 14 and overall site plan materials once they are finalized. However, impacts to wetlands will not
noticeably change in the design based on any of the updated project data. The materials provided here for your review

will be almost entirely consistent with the next design iteration in regard to wetlands and waterbody impacts.

Please reach out if you would like additional information on the Facility or would like to set up a call to discuss the
Facility plans further.

Thank you,

Linda

Linda Rivard | Project Manager
Mobile +1 (207) 205-7168 | linda.rivard@tetratech.com

Tetra Tech, Inc. | Leading with Science®
451 Presumpscot St. | Portland, ME 04103 | tetratech.com
Tetra Tech CES

n u m Climate positive and carbon negative by 2030. Read more

"t TETRA TECH

This message, including any attachments, may include privileged, confidential and/or inside information. Any distribution or use of this communication by anyone other than the
intended recipient is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender by replying to this message and then delete it from
your system.



STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF STATE

ONE COMMERCE PLAZA
99 WASHINGTON AVENUE

KATHY HOCHUL
GOVERNOR

ALBANY, NY 12231-0001 ROBERT J. RODRIGUEZ

HTTPS://DOS.NY.GOV

July 28, 2023

Linda Rivard

Tetra Tech, Inc

451 Presumpscot St.
Portland, ME 04103
linda.rivard@tetratech.com

Re:  0-2023-0043

SECRETARY OF STATE

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers/Buffalo District Permit
Application — AES Corporation, Inc/Somerset Solar,
LLC- Develop a 125 megawatt (MW) solar

photovoltaic electric generating facility

Town of Somerset, Niagara County

Request for Necessary Data and Information

Dear Linda Rivard:

The Department of State received project information regarding the above matter on July 20, 2023 and
received your email request for the “initiation of the coastal consistency review for the project.”
However, pursuant to 15 CFR § 930.58, the following necessary data and information is required to
enable the Department of State to adequately assess and undertake its review of the coastal zone effects

of this proposed activity:

X A copy of a completed and a signed Federal Consistency Assessment Form (FCAF)
including the required written analysis of the proposed activity’s consistency with the
relevant enforceable policies of the State’s Coastal Management Program. This form can be
found on our website at: https://dos.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2020/09/fcaf fillable.pdf

X A copy of your application for federal agency authorization. We would accept any of the

following documents:
1. New York State Joint Application Form

(https://www.dec.ny.gov/docs/permits_ej_operations_pdf/jointapp.pdf)

2. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Application for Department of the Army Permit —

ENG Form 4345, or

3. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permit Pre-Construction Notification

(PCN) — ENG Form 6082

X A copy of all supporting documentation submitted with the federal application and the
following information if it is not included in the above:
X a detailed description of the proposed activity including its associated facilities and
coastal effects
O location map showing where the activity will be conducted
O site map drawn to scale and showing all components of the activity
X recent color photographs of the project site

NEWYORK | Department

STATE OF

OPPORTUNITY. Of State


mailto:linda.rivard@tetratech.com
https://dos.ny.gov/system/files/documents/2020/09/fcaf_fillable.pdf
https://www.dec.ny.gov/docs/permits_ej_operations_pdf/jointapp.pdf

statement of the purpose of, and need for, the activity

identification of the owner(s) of all properties on which the activity will be conducted
and of abutting property owners, both upland and underwater

written analysis of alternatives to the proposed activity considered by the applicant

A copy of the Final Environmental Impact Statement, if one is required by an
involved federal or state agency

Copies of any applications for permits or other authorizations, and related
correspondence, submitted to involved State agencies (e.g. DEC, OGS, SHPO, PSC,
ORES).

KoOAA AA

Please provide the necessary information requested above as soon as possible. The Department of State
will not commence its consistency review of the proposed activity until all necessary data and
information is received. If the Department does not concur with the consistency certification provided
for this proposed activity, the consistency provisions of the federal Coastal Zone Management Act
prohibit federal agency authorization of the activity.

Please contact me at david.newman@dos.ny.gov or (518) 474-9039 and/or Marika Krupitsky at
Marika.Krupitsky(@dos.ny.gov if you have any questions regarding this matter. When communicating
with us regarding this matter, please refer to Department of State file number O-2023-0043.

Sincerely,

1. §°T%
i’f’icméﬂj fz@d{/mm/
David J. Newman
Coastal Resources Specialist 2

Office of Planning, Development and
Community Infrastructure


mailto:david.newman@dos.ny.gov
mailto:Marika.Krupitsky@dos.ny.gov

JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 5:25 PM

To: Geldard, Beth A (DEC); Thiel, Emily S (DEC)

Cc: Peggy Grant; Morris, Doug1; patrick.green@aes.com; nathan.suttmeier@aes.com; Michael Sagan;
Mario Rice; JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility

Beth - we have reviewed the data and revised our engineering plans to adjust the NFPA limit based on the data you
provided. While the limit did move closer inland towards the Facility Site, we still have all our infrastructure sited outside
the NFPA limits. The closest infrastructure in Area 7 is 44 feet to the fence line, with the panels sited at least 69 feet
south of the NFPA limit. The updated drawings will be available on the project DMM site in the next week or so, if you
would like to review the full engineering package or other parts of the Application.

Thank you,

Linda

From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 2:52 PM

To: 'Geldard, Beth A (DEC)' <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>; Thiel, Emily S (DEC) <Emily.Thiel@dec.ny.gov>

Cc: Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@aes.com>; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>; patrick.green@aes.com;
nathan.suttmeier@aes.com; Michael Sagan <michael.sagan@aes.com>; Mario Rice <mario.rice@aes.com>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility

Thank you Beth. We will conduct a review to see how things match up and let you know what we find.

From: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

Sent: Friday, August 4, 2023 1:33 PM

To: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>; Thiel, Emily S (DEC) <Emily.Thiel@dec.ny.gov>

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
Hi Linda,
Attached is the digital file for the Natural Protective Feature Area line in Area 7. There was not much development that
could be georeferenced but | think it is close. It mostly followed the unofficial layer we have internally. Please note,
there is a Structural Hazard Area mapped on the west end of CEHA map 3 of 8 that | did not add to the layer since it was
well outside of the project area.
Please let me know if you have any trouble using the file.

Have a great weekend!

Beth



Beth Geldard, P.E.

Professional Engineer 1 (Environmental), Western Flood Protection and Dam Safety HUB, Division of Water

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
6274 East Avon-Lima Road, Avon, NY 14414
P: (585) 226-5452 |F: (585) 226-9485 | beth.geldard@dec.ny.gov

Please note, | am typically working from home on Thursdays and Fridays.

From: Geldard, Beth A (DEC)

Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 4:11 PM

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

Thank you for letting me know, Emily was not actually copied. Adding her now!

Emily, please see the two emails below. Would you be able to respond to the DEC jurisdictional determination
guestions?

From: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 3:28 PM

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

I am copying Emily Thiel on this email. Emily works in the Albany permits office and is serving as the DEC projects
manager for all 94-c projects in DEC Regions 7-9. The official jurisdictional determination for this project would need to
come from the Albany permits office.

Regarding the CEHA layer, | do not have an accurate digital file already created for this site so | need to create the CEHA
map overlay and digital file for you which usually takes a few hours. | plan on working on it this week and will get back to
you with the file.

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 2:08 PM

To: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

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

Hi Beth - left you a voice mail also, but was following up to see if we could get the digital file to align the NFPA line
shown on our engineering drawings with your data (for Area 7).

Also, considering that we have adjusted the facility design to remove all infrastructure out of the CEHA, SHA and NFPA
limits, can you confirm that a permit from NYSDEC is not required for the project, for work inside the coastal erosion
hazard area (as we have none) and that a variance from the CEHA permitting requirements is not required.

Thank you,
Linda

From: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 3:27 PM

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

| can complete an overlay on my end and see what | come up with. | am off next week though, so it will be at least a
week before | can get back to you.

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

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 3:23 PM

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

Beth - Thanks for the response.

We did have our engineers check the NPFA line in Area 7 also before we sent you the documents and find it’s accurate
to the 1988 map. Our methodology included importing the image into our CADD system and lining everything up with
roads and other features that wouldn’t have changed. We assumed the line was accurate to the shoreline proximity as
of 1988 and that some level of erosion in this area has occurred since then. If acceptable to you and for making sure this
line is accurately shown on the plans, is it possible for you to share your digital data for our use (to include appropriate
citation as NYSDEC as the source)?

Thanks,
Linda

From: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 2:58 PM

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

Thank you for adjusting the project limits and providing updated plans for the Somerset Solar Facility. The location of the
CEHA (NPFA and SHA lines) appears to be accurate for Area 1, but for Area 7 the NPFA is plotted north of the water’s
edge. Can you please double check to make sure the NPFA was plotted accurately for Area 7? | don’t think we need to
worry about development being within CEHA, but the jurisdiction should be accurately shown on the plans.

We have an approximate, unofficial digital CEHA layer we use internally as a guide and the NPFA line is shown to be
slightly landward of the top edge of bluff in Area 7. Our digital lines are not always 100% accurate, but usually it isn’t this
far off.

Please let me know if you have any questions.
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

Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 2023 7:38 PM

To: Geldard, Beth A (DEC) <Beth.Geldard@dec.ny.gov>

Cc: Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@aes.com>; Morris, Dougl <DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>; patrick.green@aes.com;
nathan.suttmeier@aes.com; Michael Sagan <michael.sagan@aes.com>; Mario Rice <mario.rice@aes.com>

Subject: FW: Somerset Solar Facility

You don't often get email from linda.rivard@tetratech.com. Learn why this is important

ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or

unexpected emails.

Beth,

On behalf of AES and as a follow-up response to the previous conversation you had with Peggy Grant regarding the
Somerset Solar Facility, we are providing engineering drawings and shapefiles that identify adjustments made to the
proposed solar project’s design. The attached materials show the Coastal Erosion Hazard Area (CEHA) and Structural
Hazard Area (SHA) limits as shown on the 1988 coastal erosion maps prepared by NYSDEC in relation to the limit of
disturbance (LOD) and infrastructure locations for the facility.

Two development areas, Area 1 and Area 7, are located adjacent to the southern shore of Lake Ontario and in proximity
to the CEHA and SHA limits (see Sheet PV-C.02.00 in the attached pdf).

e Areal area (see Sheet PV-C.02.01) - A review of the CEHA and SHA limits for Area 1 determined the original
layout contained a minor amount of infrastructure overlap within the limits of the SHA. The design in this area
has been adjusted to eliminate portions of the northern end of an access road, portions of a laydown area, and
portions of the LOD and fencing within the SHA limits. The closest distance between the SHA and infrastructure
in this area is 6 feet (fence post), with a distance of 1 foot between the LOD and the SHA limits.

e Area 7 area (see Sheet PV-C.02.07) - A review of the CEHA and SHA limits for Area 7 determined the layout and
design does not overlap with this development area, such that revisions to the design plans were not necessary
in this area (see Sheet PV-C.02.07). Note the CEHA and SHA line/limits in this area coincide. The closest distance
between the Natural Protection Features Area (NPFA) limit to LOD in this area is approximately 170 feet.

We appreciate your review of this materials and look forward to discussing the Somerset Solar project with you further.
Please reach out to us to discuss the facility in more detail or if you have any questions about the updated design plans.

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

n ﬂ Climate positive and carbon negative by 2030. Read more
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
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2023 3:31 PM

To: Peggy Grant <peggy.grant@AES.COM>

Subject: Somerset Solar Facility

CAUTION: This email originated from outside AES. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender.

Hi Peggy,

It was great discussing the Somerset Solar project with you this afternoon. As mentioned, | would forward you
information on how to plot the location of DEC’s Coastal Erosion Hazard Area on the project plans. Please see below.

The lakeside limits of Area 1 and Area 7 may be partially located within a DEC regulated Coastal Erosion Hazard
Area (CEHA). The CEHA is made up of two jurisdictions, the Natural Protective Feature Area and the Structural
Hazard Area. All new development for the solar project, including any tree/shrub clearing, cutting, and grubbing,
must be located outside (south) of the CEHA, as identified on the CEHA map. In order to confirm that all
development associated with the solar project is outside of the CEHA, please plot the location of the CEHA
(Natural Protective Feature Area line and the Structural Hazard Area line) on the project plans. This may be
completed by scaling and taking various measurements off of the 1988 CEHA map or by overlaying the 1988
CEHA map on updated imagery.

The 1988 CEHA map to reference for Area 1 is Town of Somerset map 1 of 8 and 2 of 8. The map to reference for
Area 7 is Town of Somerset map 3 of 8. The lines on the map are static and do not change as the shoreline
recedes or accretes, or if the shoreline has been stabilized. The Natural Protective Feature Area is delineated on
the CEHA map with a solid line and is regulated from the landward limit of the Natural Protective Feature Area
line to a point where mean low water depth is 15 feet, or a horizontal distance of 1000 feet from the mean low
water line, whichever is greater. The Structural Hazard Area line is delineated on the CEHA map with a dashed
line and is regulated from the Natural Protective Feature Area line to the landward limit of the Structural Hazard
Area line. Areas landward of the Structural Hazard Area (dashed line) on the map are outside of the CEHA. The
lines on the map generally have a line thickness of 10-15 ft. Since DEC regulates up to the landward limit of the
line, please be sure to plot the most landward limit of each line on the plans. All Coastal Erosion Hazard Area
maps can be downloaded at: https://www.dec.ny.gov/fs/projects/coastal/

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
6






JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah

To: Rivard, Linda; Steven D. Wilson; Peggy Grant; Morris, Doug1; Waddle, Kelly; Recta, Mina
Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Haul Route Map

From: michaelflint@roadrunner.com <michaelflint@roadrunner.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 3:44 PM

To: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Haul Route Map

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or attachments. /\

Linda, got it | can absolutely guarantee the routes on this map are all state routes except for the dotted route numbered
121. That road is a county road also known as Carmen Rd. So if this email will cover your question then use this as my
answer and all roads in the Town of Somerset are not being

used. Respectfully

Michael Flint, Town of Somerset
Highway Superintendent

From: "Rivard, Linda"

To: "michaelflint@roadrunner.com"

Cc: "Peggy Grant", "Steven D. Wilson", Dougl1", Sarah"
Sent: Wednesday August 9 2023 3:35:06PM

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Haul Route Map

Mike,

One more time, thanks for our patience. Here is the correct file showing the haul routes. Could you please review and
confirm that none of the truck/haul routes shown are roads that are maintained by the Town of Somerset?

Appreciate it,

Linda



From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 3:14 PM

To: 'michaelflint@roadrunner.com' <michaelflint@roadrunner.com>

Cc: peggy.grant@aes.com; Steven D. Wilson <swilson@youngsommer.com>; Morris, Dougl
<DOUG.MORRIS1@tetratech.com>; JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah <Sarah.Weatherbee@tetratech.com>
Subject: FW: Somerset Solar Haul Route Map

Michael,

Resending as | had your email address incorrect on my first try. Thank again for returning my call this afternoon.

Please see the attached maps that identify the proposed construction traffic routes proposed for the Somerset Solar
Facility. Can you confirm that none of the truck/haul routes shown are roads that are maintained by the Town of
Somerset?

Thank you,

Linda

P.S. please reply all on your response, as | will be out of office later this week and want to make sure my colleagues
receive your response.

Linda Rivard | Project Manager

Mobile +1 (207) 205-7168 | linda.rivard@tetratech.com

Tetra Tech, Inc. | Leading with Science®
451 Presumpscot St. | Portland, ME 04103 | tetratech.com

Tetra Tech CES

D D D D Climate positive and carbon negative by 2030. Read more



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

To: Katherine.Alexander@niagaracounty.com; Dawn.Timm@niagaracounty.com; Dean.Lapp@niagaracounty.com;
Richard.Wiesner@niagaracounty.com
Cc: David W. Koplas; Garret A. Meal; Sudak, Courtney; JarqguinWeatherbee, Sarah; Peggy Grant; Morris, Dougl;
Norman D. Allen
Subject: FW: Somerset Solar Facility - County Road Use Agreement (ORES Matter No. 22-00026)
Date: Monday, July 31, 2023 4:37:20 PM
Attachments: Exhibit 16 Effect on Transportation.pdf
image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
Appendix 16-A Transportation Data and Figures rev2 20230730 redux.pdf
Figure 2 1 Project Site 20230309.pdf

Katherine, Dawn, Dean, and Richard,

Please see the attached information and notes below regarding a request for Road Use Agreement
review for the Somerset Solar project. It was brought to my attention that you also should have been
included on my original email with this information sent out this morning. Apologize for the
oversight on this matter.

Please reach out to me if you would like to discuss the project further or need more information as
part of your review.

Thank you,
Linda

From: Rivard, Linda

Sent: Monday, July 31, 2023 1:10 PM

To: 'Garret A. Meal' <Garret.Meal@niagaracounty.com>; Sudak, Courtney
<COURTNEY.SUDAK@tetratech.com>

Cc: David W. Koplas <David.Koplas@niagaracounty.com>; Norman D. Allen
<Norman.Allen@niagaracounty.com>; JarquinWeatherbee, Sarah
<Sarah.Weatherbee@tetratech.com>; peggy.grant@aes.com

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - County Road Use Agreement (ORES Matter No. 22-00026)

Garret, David, and Norman,

As requested, we are providing some figures, maps and supporting information related to the
proposed Somerset Solar Facility, located in the Town of Somerset, Niagara County. The attached
Exhibit 16 has transportation information prepared for the project, and Appendix 16-A includes truck
haul routes and information regarding the roads and access routes anticipated to be used during
construction. Figure 2-1 provides an overview of the Facility location and development areas. The
state’s Matter Master website for the project (Case #22-00026) contains a complete record of all the
project’s Application materials that have been submitted to the Office of Renewable Energy Siting
(ORES) as part of our request for a 94-c permit for major renewable energy facility.

We are in the process of addressing deficiencies identified by ORES for our submitted Application.
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EXHIBIT 16
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ACRONYM LIST

8§ Section

AADT Average Annual Daily Traffic

AASHTO American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
BCSD Barker Central School District

CR Niagara County Route

cy cubic yards

FAA Federal Aviation Administration

Ibs. pounds

mph miles per hour

NYCRR New York Codes, Rules and Regulations
NYS New York State

NYSDOT New York State Department of Transportation
RUA Road Use Agreement

USCs Uniform Standards and Conditions
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EXHIBIT 16

Glossary Terms

Applicant

Application

Facility

Facility Site

Project Parcels

Project Site

Somerset Solar, LLC

Somerset Solar, LLC, a subsidiary of The AES Corporation, Inc. (AES),
the entity seeking a siting permit for the Facility Site from the Office of
Renewable Energy Siting (ORES) under Section (8) 94-c of the New
York State Executive Law.

Application under 894-c of the New York State Executive Law for review
by the ORES for a Siting Permit.

The proposed components to be constructed for the collection and
distribution of energy for the Somerset Solar Facility, which includes
solar arrays, inverters, electric collection lines, and the collection
substation.

The limit of disturbance (LOD) that will be utilized for construction and
operation of the Facility, which totals about 693 acres on the Project
Parcels in the Town of Somerset, Niagara County, New York (Figure 2-
1).

The parcels that are currently under agreement with the Applicant and
Landowner, totaling about 1,784 acres in the Town of Somerset,
Niagara County, New York, on which the Facility Site will be sited
(Figure 3-1).

The acreage of the Project Parcels under agreement between the
Applicant and the Landowner, consisting of approximately 1,396 acres,
in which the Applicant has performed diligence, surveys and
assessments in support of Facility design and layout.

ii a 2S





EXHIBIT 16

EXHIBIT 16 EFFECT ON TRANSPORTATION

This exhibit addresses the requirements specified in 19 New York Codes, Rules and Regulations
(NYCRR) Section (8) 900-2.17. The Project Site is located in the Town of Somerset (Town), New
York. The Town is a rural community located on the southern shore of Lake Ontario, Niagara
County. The Facility Site has proposed access points along New York State (NYS) Route 18/Lake
Road, and Niagara County Route (CR) 108/Hartland Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road. The
existing traffic circulation within these roads is controlled by stops signs. There are no existing
traffic signals to mitigate traffic. No signalized intersections are present within the Facility Site;
however, turning movement traffic counts were performed for several locations adjacent to the
Project Site (Appendix 16-B). While a temporary increase in traffic in the vicinity of the Facility
Site is anticipated during construction, this increase in traffic would be short-term, and would
mostly be due to commuting personnel. Most equipment will stay on the Facility Site for the
duration of time in which it is needed, to reduce the amount of equipment transportation trips. The
Applicant will enter into Road Use Agreements (RUAs) with the New York State Department of
Transportation (NYSDOT) and Niagara County (if necessary) concerning any necessary road
repairs. There are no anticipated traffic impacts during Facility operation. The Facility has been
designed to comply with 19 NYCRR 8900-2.17 and the Uniform Standards and Conditions
(USCs) and potential impacts related to transportation have been avoided and minimized to the

maximum extent practicable.
16(a) Conceptual Site Plan

The Preliminary Design Drawings, including the Conceptual Site Plans for the Facility, are
included in Appendix 5-A and Appendix 16-A. The conceptual site plans, drawn at an appropriate
scale, depict all Facility Site driveways and roadway intersections, that show the following

features.

(7)Horizontal and Vertical Geometry, Approach Lanes, Lane and Shoulder

Widths, Traffic Control Devices, and Sight Distances

The Preliminary Design Drawings prepared in association with Exhibit 5 serve as the
conceptual site plan for the purposes of this exhibit. These drawings identify future
driveway and roadway intersections (Appendix 5-A, Sheets PV-C.02.01-PV-C.02.10),
road profiles are provided in Appendix 5-A, Sheets PV-C.06.01-PV-C.06.04, and Sheets
PV-C.07.01 and PV-C.07.02 (entrance and road details); and Appendix 16-A includes
horizontal and vertical geometry, the number of approach lanes, lane widths, shoulder

~ANC
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EXHIBIT 16

widths, traffic control devices (if needed) and sight distances of all Facility Site driveway
and roadway intersections. All construction storage and staging areas will be located
within the Facility Site. Appendix 16-A includes sight distance figures and calculations for
the Facility access points, as well as American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) tables. The Facility Site will utilize three public roads
for access: NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road.
It is anticipated that the delivery trucks will travel to the Facility Site’s access roads via
NYS Route 104, NYS Route 78, NYS Route 270, and NYS Route 18/Lake Road. A map
identifying haul routes is provided in Appendix 16-A.

Sight distance figures were completed for the proposed haul roads at the entrances/exits
for Facility Site entrances located off of public roadways. Site distance plans and profiles
were developed for the Facility at CR 108/Hartland Road for stopping sight distances from
the north and south (Appendix 16-A).

(2) Road locations and Widths and Road Intersection Suitability for Wind
Facilities

According to the requirements of the §94-c regulations (8900-2.17[a][2]), characterization
of public road intersection suitability is required for wind facilities. The proposed Facility
is a solar facility, and therefore, characterization of the public road intersection suitability

outside the Facility Site is not applicable. .

16(b) Description of the Pre-Construction Characteristics of Public Roadways in

the Vicinity of the Facility, as determined pursuant to Pre-Application Meetings

This section includes an analysis of traffic conditions for public roadways located in the vicinity of
the Facility Site based on pre-Application meetings and discussions held with local officials, as
well as conditions collected in the field and other publicly available data. Data on traffic volumes,
accident history, school bus routes, emergency service provider information, load-restricted

bridges/culverts, and roadway permits also are summarized below.

The Applicant has engaged with local transportation officials throughout the Pre-Application
process, including outreach conducted to the Town of Somerset Supervisor, Highway
Superintendent, and their hired engineer; and the Niagara County Commissioner for highways,
bridges and structures (Appendix 2-D). At the direction of the Town of Somerset Highway

Superintendent, the Applicant has been directing consultation and correspondence regarding the

Q
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EXHIBIT 16

Facility and public roadway matters to the Town of Somerset Supervisor and Deputy Supervisor.

The only concern raised to date by the Town supervisors was whether haul trucks and equipment

would be driving by the Barker School. Information was provided to the Town that confirmed

construction deliveries and other related traffic during construction would not be using Haight

Road where the school district facilities are located (none of the proposed haul routes or access

points for the Facility are located on Haight Road). No road permits from the Town are anticipated

to be needed, since all the access points for the Facility are located on NYS- (NYS Route 18/Lake

Road) or Niagara County-managed roadways (CR 65/Hosmer Road and CR 108/Hartland Road).

(1) Traffic Volumes, Use Levels and Accident Data

Throughout the Facility planning process the Applicant has been coordinating with local
Town and Niagara County transportation officials. In these discussions the Town and
County have not identified the availability of local data to use in the traffic volume, use
levels and accident data analysis, so this information was obtained from NYSDOT.
Existing traffic volume data along proposed approach and departure routes for the Facility
Site were obtained from the NYSDOT’s Traffic Data Viewer and Highway Data Services
website and are summarized in this section and shown in Table 16-1. The NYSDOT
website provides hourly and Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) volumes, representing
the total volume of both directions of traffic on the roadway. The NYSDOT AADT volumes
varied on the evaluated haul routes, with the lowest volumes occurring on Lower Lake
Road adjacent to the Facility Site’s driveways (229 AADT), and the highest volumes
occurring on NYS Route 18/Lake Road (1,748 AADT). The NYSDOT counts are provided
in Table 16-1 below, which summarizes the NYSDOT AADT volume data in the vicinity of
the Facility Site.

Table 16-1. Summary of Existing Traffic Volume

Roadway Jurisdiction | AADT!? Year From To
NYS
Department of Niagara County
New York State Transportation 1,432 2020 Route (CR) 24 NYS Route 148
(NYS) Route (NYSDOT)
18/Lake Road NYS Route 78
NYSDOT 1,748 2018 Olcott CR 24 Hess Road

CR 108/ . Somerset Townline NYS Route

Hartland Road Niagara County 554 2020 Road 18/Lake Road
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Roadway Jurisdiction | AADT! Year From To
Town of 391 2017 NYS Route 18/Lake Lower Lake Road
Somerset Road
Lower Lake Road Town of 299 2018 CR 108/Hartland | Johnson Creek
Somerset Road Road
NYS Route 18/Lake
Niagara County 372 2016 Road (End) NYS |Lower Lake Road
Route 148
CR 1:(’)23“” NYS Route
Niagara Count 1695 2017 Hartland/Somerset| 18/Lake Road
9 y ’ Townline Road |(End) NYS Route
148 Lake Road
. . CR 65/Hosmer
West Somerset Niagara County 455 2017 Newfane Townline Road
Road . CR 65/Hosmer CR 15/Quaker
Niagara County 541 2016 Road Road
CR 65/Hosmer |, West Somerset NYS Route
Road Niagara County 271 2016 Road 18/Lake Road
CR 24 Hess . West Somerset NYS Route
Road Niagara County 572 2020 Road 18/Lake Road

1. AADT = Annual Average Daily Traffic. AADT represents the total of both directions on the

roadway.

Turning movement traffic counts were collected on Tuesday, March 23, through Friday,

March 26, 2021 by Tetra Tech. Traffic counts were conducted between 7:00-9:00 a.m.

and 4:00-6:00 p.m. for the weekday commuter a.m. and p.m. peak hours. The peak hour

traffic periods generally occurred between 8:00-9:00 a.m. and 4:45-5:45 p.m. The

following unsignalized intersections that were counted include:

o NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/Somerset Coal-Fired Plant Driveway

¢ NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/CR 108 (Hosmer Road)

¢ NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/CR 108 (Hartland Road)

¢ CR 108 (Hartland Road)/Lower Lake Road

All turning movement count data was collected on a typical weekday while local schools

were in session and no adverse weather conditions impacted traffic. The counts are

provided in Appendix 16-B.

Somerset Solar, LLC
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Accident reports for the most recent 3-year period (2018 through 2021) were obtained via
a Freedom of Information Law request to the NYSDOT which provided records from the
NYSDOT Accident Location Information System. The data included information for all the

roadways identified as haul routes for the Facility.

Based on the existing accident data and AADT for the roadway segment, the annual
accident rates for NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, Lower Lake Road,
CR 15/Quaker Road, CR 24/Hess Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road were calculated and
then compared to the New York Statewide Average for similar types of roadways. A total
of 14 accidents occurred on the local haul routes during the 3-year analysis period. Of the
six roadway segments evaluated, all six have accidents rates that are below the statewide
average. The increase in traffic associated with the Facility’s construction period along
these roadway segments is anticipated to be temporary, relatively modest, and likely to
occur during off-peak hours. Therefore, is not considered to be significant. The accident
reports and a table summarizing the accident rates are provided in Appendix 16-C, and

an overview of the accident summary for the Facility area is provided in Table 16-2.

(2) Transit Facilities and School Bus Routes

No mass transit services have been identified for NYS Route 18/Lake Road, or other roads

regional to the Facility.
The Applicant contacted the Barker Central School District (BCSD) to request:

e School bus route information, specifically, the identification of school bus routes

in the vicinity of the Facility; and
o Number of buses.

Time of day when the buses travel along the possible haul roads needed for delivery trucks
and construction vehicles, including drop off and pick up times noted below. The BCSD
has a school bus facility located at 1692 Quaker Road (CR 15), approximately 2.5 miles
(13,000 feet) via roadway travel, which is approximately 2 miles (9,450 feet) to the
southeast of the nearest proposed Facility’s access road. The closest Facility access road
to the school bus facility is located off NYS Route 18/Lake Road which will provide access
to Area 6 (Appendix 5-A, Sheets PV-C.02.00 and PV-C.02.06). The transportation
dispatcher for the BCSD indicated that school buses depart to transport students via 15

bus routes in the morning starting at 6:30 a.m. and return to the bus facility by 9:00 a.m.
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Table 16-2. Accident Summary Table

Segment Crashes within the Facility Area
Annual
Roadway Distance|Average Daily
inl
From To UL 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 |Animal| 'O NO 1o
Animal
New York
State (NYS)
Route | NYSROUE | \vopoute 148 |4.8 miles| 3,180 ] 4 ; ; 6 4 10
78 Olcott
18/Lake
Road
Niagara
County Somerset
Route (CR) | Townline 13{5@%‘;‘; 4 [30mies| 931 i i i i 3 0 3
108/Hartland Road
Road
Lower Lake CR Johnson Creek
108/Hartland 1.6 miles 229 - - - - - 0 0
Road Road
Road
NYS Route
CR 18/Lake
15/Quaker | Road End Ha{g\i‘/gﬁé Séoénoe;et 41miles| 2,067 i ; 1 i ; 1 1
Road NYS Route
148
CR West
65/Hosmer | Somerset NYS Route 1.5 miles 271 - - - - - 0 0
18/Lake Road
Road Road
West
CR 24/Hess NYS Route .
Road Sogz)(zrjet 18/Lake Road 1.3 miles 572 - - - - - 0 0

1. Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT). AADT represents the total of both directions on the roadway.
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In the afternoon, buses depart starting at 2:00 p.m. and return by 4:00 p.m., with additional
afterschool bus activity between 5.00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m. (L. Walker, personal
communication) communication) The following bus routes, number of bus stops and
number of buses along the roads located in vicinity of the Facility are summarized below

and the routes are depicted on Figure 16-2. Bus Routes 7 and 9 pass by the Facility Site.

¢ CR 24/Hess Road from Hoffman Road to NYS Route 18/Lake Road — 10 bus
stops, one bus (Figure 16-2, Route 9)

e NYS Route 18/Lake Road from CR 24/Hess Road to CR 15/Quaker Road — 22

bus stops, two buses (Figure 16-2, Route 7)

o CR 108/Hartland Road from NYS Route 18/Lake Road to Lower Lake Road to CR
15/Quaker Road — Seven bus stops, one bus (Figure 16-2, Route 7)

e CR 65/Hosmer Road from NYS Route 104 to NYS Route 18/Lake Road — 16 bus
stops, three buses (Figure 16-2, Route 5)

e CR 108/Hartland Road from NYS Route 104 to NYS Route 18/Lake Road — 22
bus stops, three buses (Figure 16-2, Route 5)

e CR 15/Quaker Road from NYS Route 104 to NYS Route 18/Lake Road — 50 bus
stops, three buses (Figure 16-2, Route 4)

Based on the types and relatively low number of construction vehicles on the roadways, it
is not anticipated that construction-related traffic will result in a noticeable delay to any bus
routes. The Applicant will contact the BCSD again once the Facility’s construction schedule
has been finalized to determine if the district has modified the school bus routes or

schedules based on changes in student demographics.

(3) Emergency Service Approach and Departure Routes

Maps depicting the emergency response routes are identified in Figure 16-1 and locations
of the local emergency service providers are provided on Figure 6-2. Information was sent
to local emergency responders that serve the vicinity of the Facility Site (i.e., Town of
Somerset Police Department and Barker Fire Department, Tri-Town Volunteer Ambulance
Services Inc.) (Appendix 2-C), which provided information describing the Facility and the
894-c Application process. A request for emergency service providers to review and verify

the routes they would take to the Facility Site when responding to a possible emergency
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was submitted. Several requests to hold a meeting with emergency service providers to
discuss proposed emergency routes and procedures have been made throughout
outreach efforts (Appendix 2-D). The Applicant will continue to coordinate with local first
responders throughout the permitting and planning process prior to construction to
address any potential concerns emergency service providers may have regarding access

to the Facility Site during an emergency.

The Applicant has developed a Site Security Plan (Appendix 6-A) and Safety Response Plan
(Appendix 6-B) for the Facility’s construction and operational periods. During the Facility’s
construction phase, the Applicant will have employees on-site trained in responding to
emergency situations, including having staff on-site at all times that are trained in first aid
and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation, and in the use of Automated External Defibrillators.
The Applicant has been conducting outreach with local emergency responder
organizations to conduct their review of the Site Security and Safety Response plans;
however, no input from local emergency responder organizations has been received to

date.

During construction, a map of all emergency service provider locations and routes will be
posted in the general contractor’s trailer and provided to construction staff and local

emergency service providers.

(4) Load Bearing Structural Rating Information

The Facility will have access along three public roadways: NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR
108/Hartland Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road. The particular vehicles involved in the
construction of the Facility have not yet been determined, however, conventional
construction vehicles are anticipated to be utilized, with the largest vehicle expected to be
a semi-trailer (AASHTO WB-67), which has been identified as the design vehicle in the
determination of potential restrictions on the haul routes to the site. Except for the delivery
of the transformer, the delivery of solar components and construction materials are not
anticipated to require oversize or overweight transport vehicles. Transformer delivery is
expected to require a Special Hauling Permit from the NYSDOT for an
oversize/overweight vehicle. The transformer will require two deliveries: one for the

transformer radiators and one for the body of the transformer.

Existing restrictions regarding vehicle height, weight, and width along the potential haul

routes to the three access roads were identified based on field observations and data

Q

~
Somerset Solar, LLC 10 (@ |





EXHIBIT 16

provided by the NYSDOT and the Town. Information pertaining to any load-restricted (R-
posted) bridges and culverts along the proposed haul routes was obtained from NYSDOT

Posted Bridge Interactive Map.

Based on a review of this information, there are no R-Posted Bridges or culverts along the
suggested haul routes and bridge clearances (height and width) are sufficient to
accommaodate the design vehicle (WB-67). The NYSDOT website indicated a total of 10
bridges along the haul routes. For the transformer, the Special Hauling Permit will be the

final determination of the designated route taken by the vehicle delivering the transformer.
Traffic Volume Counts

As the Facility is not located within a congested urbanized area, 24-hour traffic counts are
not applicable, and are not included in this Application. Intersection turning movement

counts were conducted at the intersections of:
e NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/Somerset Coal-Fired Plant Driveway
o NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/CR 65 (Hosmer Road)
¢ NYS Route 18 (Lake Road)/CR 108 (Hartland Road)
e CR 108 (Hartland Road)/Lower Lake Road

Tetra Tech conducted the turning movement counts during the a.m. and p.m. peak periods
on a typical weekday in the week of March 23, 2021. The intersection count information is

provided in Appendix 16-B.

16(c) Facility Trip Generation

(1) Number, Frequency, and Timing of Vehicle Trips

The following provides an estimated construction phasing sequence for the proposed
Facility. A more detailed schedule with anticipated dates will be developed with the
contractor after detailed engineering is completed and the Application process is

complete.
e Construction begins — Notice to Proceed

e Site prep — implementation of the Facility’s Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan,
followed by grading and clearing and roadway construction (gravel delivery); 3-4

months (weather dependent)
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e Pile delivery — 2-3 months
e Driving steel — 3-4 months (1-2 month overlap with start of next activity)

e Racking installation (miscellaneous delivery) — 3-4 months (1-2 month overlap with

start of next activity)

e Panel installation (panel delivery)— 3-4 months (1-2 month overlap with start of

next activity)
e Balance of system electrical installation — 3-months
e Test and cold commission — 1-2 months
e Hot commissioning and capacity testing — 1-2 months

Conventional trucks are anticipated to be used to transport materials to the Facility Site.
Except for the transformer delivery, it is not anticipated that any other oversize or
overweight deliveries would be required. A summary of the numbers and types of
construction vehicles that are anticipated to be used to transport the Facility components
(solar panels, inverters) and construction materials/equipment is provided below in this

section.

Three-axle dump trucks are anticipated to be used to haul materials (gravel) associated
with construction of the access roads. The dump trucks typically have a capacity of
approximately 16 cubic yards (cy) per truck and an estimated gross weight of 60,000
pounds (Ibs.). It is estimated that approximately 5,184 cy of materials are needed or

approximately 324 truck deliveries.

Concrete trucks are anticipated to deliver approximately 13 cy of concrete for the
transformer pad, with a capacity of approximately 10 cy per truck and an estimated gross
weight of 60,000 Ibs. Additional concrete will be used elsewhere, such as for installation
of the fence posts and construction of the Facility Substation sound barrier wall. It is
anticipated that approximately three to five concrete truck deliveries will be required per

day during peak construction.

Conventional semi-trailers of various sizes for delivery of solar panel arrays and
components, and interconnection facility materials. As currently proposed, the Facility
includes approximately 280,603 solar panels consisting of 26 modules per string for the
fixed tilt racking and 27 modules per string for the single axis tracker racking (total of
10,450 strings). Solar modules include both fixed tilt (40,222) and tracker-style modules
2Q
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(240,381) (Exhibit 5). The panels are anticipated to be delivered using 53-foot flatbed
trucks (WB-67). Each truck can convey up to approximately 720 panels which equates to
approximately 390 truck deliveries for solar panels. It is estimated that the remaining
construction material needed (tracker, piles, wire) would add approximately 150 more

truck deliveries using similar or smaller sized vehicles.

Conventional semi-trailer (WB-67) carrying the Facility’s transformer. The transformer is
anticipated to require two deliveries: one for the transformer radiators and one for the body
of the transformer, and these deliveries are expected to be oversize/overweight requiring
a Special Hauling Permit from NYSDOT.

Conventional vehicles carrying contractor's equipment and tools, for construction or
operation of the Facility is anticipated to require 75 to 80 vehicles per day during
construction activities. During ramp up and closure of construction the number of

anticipated vehicles is expected to be less.

It is expected that two water trucks will be in use at the Facility Site at one time to truck
water to the site for dust suppression. Each of these vehicles are anticipated to need two
trips for each of the phases described in Table 16-3 for site preparation and grading,
trenching and road construction, and equipment and installation activities. Commercial
vehicles needed for carrying chemicals for construction or operation of the Facility are not

anticipated to be required.

Trucks carrying fuel for the on-site construction equipment is anticipated to require four
vehicles, and these deliveries are not expected to be limited to use of the identified haul

routes.

Deliveries of equipment and Facility supplies are anticipated to occur during daylight

hours.

The trips listed above are anticipated to be spread out over the length of the construction
period which is expected to last approximately 18 months with construction activity
anticipated to occur on weekdays only, although some construction activity may occur
on Saturdays to maintain the overall schedule. The deliveries are anticipated to be
distributed to the Facility’s proposed site access driveways using three specific haul
routes. A more detailed schedule is to be developed with the contractor after detailed

engineering Is completed.
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The construction delivery trips by component and truck type are provided in Table 16-3.

As shown in the table, the total number of entering and exiting (two-way) truck trips over

the 18-month construction period is estimated to be 1,510 trips.

Table 16-3. Estimated Construction Vehicle Trips

. . . , Trips Per Piece of :
Equipment/Activity Construction Equipment Equipment? Weight
Graders (174 hp?) 2 57,250 lbs?
Rubber—Tlregplsoaders (164 2 28.193 Ibs
Site Prgf’aé?‘;ion and Scrapers (313 hp) 3 92,980 Ibs
ading Water Trucks (189 hp) 2 115,217 Ibs
Generator Sets 2
Roller/Compactor 1 22,050 Ibs
Excavators (168 hp) 3 49,600 lbs
Graders (174 hp) 3 57,250 Ibs
Trenching and Road Water Trucks (189 hp) 2 115,217 lbs
Construction Tren(?her (63 hp) 4 1,100 lbs
Rubber-Tlrehdp)Loader (164 5 28.193 Ibs
Generator Sets 2
Crane (399 hp) 1 105,100 lbs
Crane (165 hp) 1 81,200 Ibs
Forklifts (145 hp) 8 10,200 Ibs
Equipment and Pile Drivers 10 10,330 Ibs
Installation Pickup Trucks/All-Terrain-
Vehicles (ATVs) 45 4,000 Ibs
Water Trucks (189 hp) 2 115,217 Ibs
Generator Sets 2
Commissioning Pickup Trucks/ATVs 5 4,000 lbs
Haul Roads (and other
uses for crushed stone) |  Dump Trucks (22 cubic 1,997 22.000 Ibs
[includes 819 exiting yards)
trips for removal]

1. Total trips represent the two-way trips (entering and exiting) for the length of the

construction period.

2. hp = horsepower;

Ibs = pounds

Workers and employees in passenger vehicles (pick-up truck size or smaller) would not
be limited to using the identified haul routes. During the busiest construction period, there
is anticipated to be approximately 150 workers each day operating in one shift from 7:00
a.m. to 4.00 p.m. During an average construction period, is anticipated that there will be

~
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approximately 50 construction workers on site each day during the 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

shift.

The construction delivery and employee trips were further broken down into daily trips and

peak hour trips during the average and busiest construction periods. The estimated daily

construction trips and weekday peak hour construction trips are summarized in Tables 16-

4 and Table 16-5, respectively.

Table 16-4. Daily Construction Vehicle Trips

Total Daily Trips?
Vehicle Type
During Busiest PeriodDuring Average Period
Deliveries 40 6
Employee? 300 100
Total Daily Trips 340 106

1. Total trips represent the daily two-way trips (entering and

exiting). The number of vehicles is half of the values shown.

2. 150 employees during the busiest construction period; 50

employees during average period.

Table 16-5. Weekday Peak Hour Construction Vehicle Trips

Vehicle Type

Weekday a.m. Peak Hour

Weekday p.m. Peak Hour

Enter

Exit

Enter Exit

Busiest Construction Period

Somerset Solar, LLC

Delivery Trips 5 1 1 5
Employee Trips 126 14 14 126
Total 131 15 15 131

Average Construction Period

Delivery Trips 1 0 1
Employee Trips 45 5 45
Total 46 5 46
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For the post-construction period when the Facility is operational, it is expected that the
Facility will generate approximately one or two trips per week (by passenger vehicles or
pickup trucks), which is significantly fewer trips than currently generated by the existing

business at the site.

(2) Cut-and-Fill Activity

The employee trips will generally occur at the beginning and end of the workday. The
employees will likely work one shift from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. It is anticipated that most
employees will arrive in the morning before 7:00 a.m. and depart in the afternoon between
4:00 and 4:30 p.m. Thus, the peak hour volumes shown in Table 16-5 above will likely
occur from 6:30 to 7:30 a.m. and from 4:00 to 5:00 p.m., generally prior to the highway
peak hours of 8:00 to 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 to 5:30 p.m. (the data indicate that the busiest
15-minute periods are from 7:45 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. and 5:15 p.m. to 5:30 p.m.).

When the construction schedule is finalized, the actual time of day and day of the week
will be determined for the delivery/removal of any cut and fill as will the delineation of
approach and departure routes. The routes will likely be similar to those described in
section 16(c)(3) of this exhibit. Trucks carrying any cut/fill would handle 22 cubic yards of
material and weigh 80,000 Ibs. To be conservative, the capacity analyses contain a high
percentage of trucks/equipment in the peak hour calculations to ensure that there is no
traffic impact (Table 16-5). Table 16-6 and Appendix 16-A describes the proposed haul

routes.

Estimates using the Preliminary Design Drawings (Appendix 5-A) indicate the soil fill (not
gravel) will be derived from excavations associated with Facility construction. Excess
material from excavations will be distributed across the disturbed areas and blended into
existing topography to return each area to its approximate original condition.
Approximately 25,920 cy of gravel fill will be imported to the Facility Site for roads, inverter
pads, and substation/switchyard pads. There will also be approximately 220 cy of concrete
for the fence posts and 1,770 cubic yards of concrete for the slabs and foundations. The
grading plans provided in Appendix 5-A, Sheets PV-C.03.01-PV-C.03.10 and Sheet PV-

C.00.02 provide additional information on cut and fill activity.

The deliveries involving heavy trucks are anticipated to occur outside of peak periods.

Based on the low volume of construction deliveries (six peak hour trips) during the busiest
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construction activity period, there should be no noticeable increase in delays to existing
traffic on the construction haul routes. The replacement of the existing businesses
(primarily agricultural and activities associated with the former coal plant) associated with
the proposed Facility Site is not expected to result in a significant increase in truck traffic
during the a.m. and p.m. peak hours on area roadways during the proposed Facility’s

construction phase.

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

i. Approach and Departure Routes for Trucks Carrying Water, Fuels, or Chemicals
Water from off-site sources is anticipated to be trucked on to the Facility Site for dust
suppression and compaction measures. The number of daily round trips will vary
based on site conditions. Trucks carrying fuel to be used for on-site construction
equipment will not be limited to the identified haul routes. It is expected that there will
be two water trucks in use at the Facility Site. Each truck will likely be equipped with a
189-horsepower engine. Depending on the size of the tank, the average weight can
be 50,000 Ibs. to 75,000 Ibs. For every 2,500 gallons of liquid, the average
approximate weight will be an additional 25,000 Ibs. over the weight of the vehicle
carrying the tank, which can range from 17,000 Ibs. to 25,000 Ibs.

ii. Estimate of Earthwork and Materials

Based on the Preliminary Design Drawings prepared in association with Exhibit 5, an
excess of approximately 25,933 cubic yards of cut material is anticipated. Excess
material from excavations will be distributed across the disturbed areas and blended
into existing topography to return each area to its approximate original condition.
Approximately 25,920 cy of gravel fill will be imported to the Facility Site for roads,
inverter pads, and substation/switchyard pads. The Preliminary Design Drawings
provide details on the cut and fill activity proposed for the Facility (Appendix 5-A,
Sheets PV-C.03.01-PV-C.03.10 and Sheet PV-C.00.02). The number of materials for

the solar components is provided section 16(c)(1) of this exhibit.
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(3) Conceptual Employee Approach and Departure Routes

All temporary construction storage and staging areas will be located within the Facility
Site. The Facility will have three access roads: NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR
108/Hartland Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road. Existing restrictions regarding vehicle
height, weight and width along the potential haul routes to the three access roads were
assessed based on field observations, data provided by the NYSDOT and discussion with
the Town Highway Superintendent and Town of Somerset Supervisors. Based on this
evaluation, there are no posted bridges or load restricted bridges along the travel routes
to the Facility, and bridge clearances (height and width) are sufficient to accommodate the
design vehicle (WB-67). For the expected oversize/overweight transformer delivery, the
NYSDOT Special Hauling Permit process will determine an appropriate haul route for the

transformer deliveries.

Truck turning analyses were conducted to identify any locations which the design vehicle
(WB-67) would have difficulty negotiating. Based on this evaluation, three haul routes were
identified that will be able to safely accommodate a WB-67 truck and smaller vehicles. The
haul routes are described below in Table 16-6. A turning analysis has been completed for
proposed Facility Site roads, which are designed to accommodate WB-67 vehicles. Road
details are provided in Appendix 5-A (Sheets PV-C.07.01 and PV-C.07.02). Workers and
employees in passenger vehicles (pick-up truck size or smaller) will not be limited to the

identified haul routes.

Table 16-6. Proposed Haul Routes

Proposed Haul Routes to the Facility Site

Haul Route #1 — New York State (NYS) Route 104 to Niagara County
Route (CR) 65/Hosmer Road

o NYS Routel04 west bound make right onto CR 15/Quaker Road
o Turn left onto NYS Route 18/Lake Road
e Turn left onto CR 65/Hosmer Road

Haul Route #2 — NYS Route 104 to Lake Road
e NYS Route 104 west bound make right onto CR 15/Quaker Road
e Turn left onto NYS Route 18/Lake Road
e The remaining access roads branch off NYS Route 18/Lake Road

Q
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Haul Route #3 — NYS Route 104 to CR 108/Hartland Road (north
parcel)
e NYS Route 104 west bound make right onto CR 15/Quaker Road

e Turn left onto NYS Route 18/Lake Road

e Turn right on to CR 108/Hartland Road to the Facility access road
on CR 108/Hartland Road

16(d) Traffic and Transportation Impacts

(1) Analysis of Future Traffic Conditions for Wind Facilities

The proposed Facility is a solar facility. Therefore, this section is not applicable.

(2) Evaluation of the Road System to Accommodate the Projected Traffic

An arterial capacity analyses is not required. The construction traffic is not anticipated to
have a significant adverse impact on traffic conditions along the study roadways or
intersection. The proposed traffic volumes mentioned in Table 16-4 and Table 16-5 does

not create a need for traffic mitigation to the Facility.

(3) Route Evaluation — Over-Size Load Deliveries and Roadway Restrictions

No bridge weight limits were identified within the vicinity of the Facility Site that
construction vehicles would use. RUAs will be sought with the appropriate agencies, as
necessary, to use local roadways. Turning movement diagrams are contained in Appendix
16-D. The roadway system is adequate to accommodate oversize and overweight vehicles
without additional mitigation. For the expected oversize/overweight transformer delivery,
the NYSDOT Special Hauling Permit process will determine an appropriate haul route for
the transformer delivery. No other improvements are expected to be necessary to

accommaodate oversize/overweight vehicles that will be used.

Road conditions were evaluated by visual inspection and then rated with an
excellent/good/fair/poor designation based on the criteria from the NYSDOT’s 2017

Pavement Data Report for Region 10, as shown in Table 16-7.
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Table 16-7. NYSDOT’s 2017 Pavement Data Report for Region 10

Rating Condition Description
9-10 (K) Excellent No significant surface distress
7-8 Good Surface distress beginning to show
6 Fair Surface distress is clearly visible
1-5 Poor Distress is frequent and severe
U Under Construction Not rated due to ongoing work

The potential construction and vehicle delivery routes (“haul routes”) that construction
vehicles will travel to the site are NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, and CR

65/Hosmer Road. The following provides a description of each roadway evaluated:

NYS Road 18/Lake Road is classified as a rural minor arterial and has generally level
terrain. From CR 24/Hess Road to NYS Route 148, NYS Route 18/Lake Road is a NYS
roadway consisting of two travel lanes (one lane in each direction) with center striping.
Lane widths range from 11 to 13 feet and paved shoulders measure from 1 to 2 feet. The
posted speed limit is 55 miles per hour (mph). Parking is not permitted along NYS Route
18/Lake Road.

CR 108/Hartland Road is classified as a rural local roadway, with a weight limit of 10 tons
and has generally level terrain. From NYS Route 18/Lake Road to Lower Lake Road, CR
108/Hartland Road consists of two travel lanes (one lane in each direction) with center
striping. The lane width of CR 108/Hartland Road is approximately 12 feet and paved
shoulders measure from 1 to 2 feet. The posted speed limit is 55 mph. Parking is not
permitted along CR 108/Hartland Road.

CR 65/Hosmer Road is classified as a rural local roadway and has generally level terrain.
From NYS Route 18/Lake Road to West Somerset Road, the road consists of two travel
lanes (one lane in each direction) with center striping. The lane width of CR 65/Hosmer
Road is approximately 9 feet and paved shoulders measure approximately 1 % feet. The

posted speed limit is 55 mph. Parking is not permitted along CR 65/Hosmer Road.

Once the Facility is commissioned and construction activities are concluded, traffic
associated with Facility operation is anticipated to be negligible and limited to occasional
trips (one or two trips per week, using passenger vehicles or pickup trucks) associated

with routine maintenance activities.

Q
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EXHIBIT 16

i. Over-sized Deliveries

Except for the delivery of the transformer, the delivery of solar components and
construction materials are not anticipated to require oversize or overweight transport
vehicles. The transformer delivery is expected to require a Special Hauling Permit from
the NYSDOT for an oversize/overweight vehicle. As such, the Special Hauling Permit
will identify the final determination of the route taken by the vehicle delivering the
transformer. During the evaluation of haul routes for all other material deliveries, a
truck turning analysis was conducted to ensure that the WB-67 design vehicle (the
largest delivery vehicle to be utilized) will be able to make the required turns on the
proposed haul routes without impeding on opposing traffic flows. Figures depicting
intersection turning movements on the turning count diagrams are included in
Appendix 16-D. Improvements to roadways, including the proposed haul routes, are

not anticipated.

(4) Measures to Avoid or Minimize Impacts to Traffic and Transportation and

Road Use and Restoration Agreements

The construction deliveries are anticipated to utilize conventional vehicles (WB-67 and
smaller) that are able to navigate the haul routes without requiring modifications to the
roadway geometry. At the proposed access driveways, it is recommended that
preventative measures be implemented to provide for safer operation during the
construction phase. Such measures include installing temporary signage such as
“Construction Vehicles Entering and ExitingRoadway” and “Construction Entrance Ahead”
on NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, and CR 65/Hosmer Road to alert
motorists to the construction entrances. In addition to signs, construction vehicles will have
the correct warning lights when within the Facility’s location. For right turn movements
exiting the driveways, a wide turning radius will be installed as a temporary measure for
the construction phase of the development to facilitate exiting truck movements. To the
extent practicable, truck deliveries will be scheduled during off-peak hours. If needed, the
Applicant will repair damage to NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, or CR
65/Hosmer Road sustained during the construction of the Facility’s access roads to a

condition equal or better than the roadway’s condition prior to the Facility construction.

During normal operation of the Facility, the negligible traffic volumes added (1 or 2
passenger vehicle/pick-up truck trips per week) is not anticipated to cause damage to the

roadways or require mitigation.

Q
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EXHIBIT 16

The Applicant will continue to coordinate with the Town of Somerset Supervisor and
Deputy Supervisor, Town of Somerset Highway Superintendent, and their hired engineer;
the Niagara County Commissioner and NYSDOT regarding the Application process,

construction deliveries and scheduling.

i. Road Use and Restoration Agreement

In conjunction with this Application, the Applicant has consulted with the Town of
Somerset Supervisor and Deputy Supervisor, Town of Somerset Highway
Superintendent, and their hired engineer; the Niagara County Commissioner, the
Niagara County Department of Public Works Highway Division, and the NYSDOT
Region 5 Permit office to identify all required Town, Niagara County and New York
State (NYSDOT) permits. None of the access points are located along Town
maintained roads, and no road permits from the Town are anticipated to be required
(M. Flint, personal communication). For access points located along CR 65/Hosmer
Road and CR 108/Hartland Road, a driveway permit will be required from Niagara
County Department of Public Works Highway Division and a Highway Work Permit will
be required from the NYSDOT for work in the NYS right-of-way at the proposed NYS
Route 18/Lake Road driveway locations.

For deliveries of construction materials, other than the transformer, deliveries to the
Facility are not expected to be oversized or overweight, thus, permits for deliveries
would not be required. The transformer delivery will require Special Hauling Permits
from the NYSDOT due to the large dimensions of the transformer. The type of permits
required will depend on the vehicle and cargo characteristics, the distance travelled
and trip duration. At this time, the specific characteristics of the transformer and the
vehicle’s point of origin are not known. The NYSDOT Permit Office

(https://www.dot.ny.gov/nypermits/special-hauling-permits) provides the procedures

required to apply for the various Special Hauling Permits. The NYSDOT Highway Work
Permit includes a provision for a Road Use Agreement in which the Applicant provides
a bond to allow for restoration for any damages within the NYS right-of-way after the

Facility is completed.

Table 16-8 lists the anticipated roadway permits for the NYSDOT and Niagara County.
No roadway permits are anticipated to be needed from the Town. A copy of the
NYSDOT instructions and sample for PERM 33 for Highway Work Permits and

2AQ
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EXHIBIT 16

Table 16-8. Roadway Agreement and Permit Table

Highway Work Permit
Government Road Use [for Work Within Public Permit Type Contact Information
Agency Agreement Right-of-Way or yp
Special Hauling Permit
. . Highway SuperintendentMted Flint
1
Town of Somerset N/A Road Opening Permit N/A 716-795-3866
Niagara County Department of Public Works,
Highway Division
. . . Assistant Civil Engineer
Niagara County N/A Driveway Permit N/A Mark Wiesner
716-439-7363
Richard.Wiesner@niagaracounty.com
New York State Highway Work NYSDOT - nghw_ay Work Permits
5 . John Billittier
Department of N/A PERM 33 Permit for Non-
Transportation Utility Work 716-847-3271
John.Billittier@dot.ny.gov
Special Hauling NYSDOT Central Permit Office
New York State Permit for 518-485-2999
Department of N/AZ PERM 39 Oversize/ permits@dot.ny.gov
Transportation Overweight Apply online at OSACAR:
Vehicles https://www.oscar.ny.gov/OSCR/OSCRCarrierHome

1. Road use agreement contained within the Road Opening Permit.

2. Aroad use agreement is included in the New York State Department of Transportation Highway Work Permit

N/A = Permit not applicable.

aJC
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EXHIBIT 16

driveway permit instructions provided by Niagara County are included in Appendix 16-
E.

No improvements to public roadways are anticipated to be required as a result of
construction of the Facility. Given the limited work required for the access driveways
located along NYS Route 18/Lake Road, CR 108/Hartland Road, CR 65/Hosmer
Road, and that only two deliveries to the Facility are expected to be required for
oversized or overweight materials, there is no need to enter into a RUA with the Town
for the Facility. There is no access proposed via Town roads and therefore a draft RUA

is not included as an appendix to this Application.

The use of private property adjacent to public roads will be permitted through a lease

or easement agreement executed between the Applicant and landowner.

16(e) Public Transportation, School Bus Routes, and Aeronautical and Military

Operations

There are no public transit service providers that operate within vicinity of the Facility.

16(f) FAA Notice of Proposed Construction

(1) Statements of Review

A Facility review was submitted to the Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA’s) Notice

Criteria Tool. Results of this FAA review determined that Facility components do not

exceed Notice Criteria. Therefore, there is no FAA Notice of Proposed Construction

required for the proposed Facility (Appendix 8-A, Attachment 8, Appendix A, Attachment

Q).

(2) Wind Facility Location Requiring FAA Review

The proposed Facility is a solar facility. Therefore, this section is not applicable.

(3) Responses to FAA Facility Operator Reviews and Consultation

As noted above Facility structure information was entered into FAA’s Notice Criteria Tool,

which determined the Facility does not exceed the Notice Criteria. Therefore, there is no

FAA Notice of Proposed Construction required for the proposed Facility (Appendix 8-A,

Attachment 8, Appendix A, Attachment C).
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References
Walker, L. 2023. Personal communication via email between Lynn Walker (Manager, Barker
Central School District Transportation Office) and Linda Rivard (Tetra Tech, Inc.) on

February 6, 2023 related to bus route information for the Facility Site and vicinity.

Flint, M. 2023. Personal communication via phone between Michael Flint (Town of Somerset
Highway Superintendent) and Linda Rivard (Tetra Tech, Inc.) on February 22, 2023

regarding roadway permits that may be required for the Facility.
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APPENDIX 16-A

Transportation Data and Figures
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DESIGN CRITERIA 2-64

Exhibit 2-7  Design Criteria for Non-NHS Local Rural Roads
Travel Lane Width (ft.) Based
on Design Year AADT*? Turn Lane (ft.) Max. Percent Grade Min. Min.
Design Stopping Radius Curve
Speed | AADT AADT AADT Terrain Sight (ft.)
Under 400- Over Minimum | Desirable Distance (ft.) emax = 8%
400 2,0008 2,000* Level Rolling Mountainous
20 9 10 11 8 11 16 97 70
25 9 10 11 7 11 15 133 113
30 9 10 11 7 11 15 175 167
35 9 10 11 Match 7 10 14 220 233
10 Travel
40 9 1 11 Lane 7 1 13 271 14
0 Width 0 3
45 10 11 11 7 9 12 327 409
50 10 11 11 6 8 10 387 521
55 11 11 11 6 7 10 452 651
Shoulder Width (ft)* Notes:

1. For bridges, refer to the NYSDOT Bridge Manual, Section 2. Where the Bridge Manual only furnishes
roadway width, subtract the lane width on this table from the roadway width to determine the shoulder
width.

2. Minimum travel lane width is 10 ft. for routes designated as Access Highways and for routes within 1
mile of Qualifying Highways on the National Network (1982 STAA Highways).

3. For roads in mountainous terrain with a design volume under 3,000 AADT and a design speed of 40
mph or less, use 9 ft. lanes (except where Note 2 applies).

All 4. 12 ft. lanes should be considered where the crash rate is above the statewide rate for similar facilities
Speeds 258 4° 6 and there is substantial truck traffic.
5. The minimum shoulder width is 4 ft. if roadside barrier is used on low-volume roads.

EB 21-020 D.A. 09/01/2021

6. In uncurbed areas, a 4 ft. min. shoulder width is recommended where the route is a designated bicycle

route or anticipated bicycle demand is high and cyclists will be accommodated on the shoulder. In
curbed areas, a 4 ft. min. width shoulder, 5 ft. min. width bicycle lane or 13 ft. min. shared lane should
be provided where there is high bicycling demand and/or a bicycle route is present and no parallel
bicycle facility present. If neither the min. width shoulder nor lane can be provided, a justification is
required for the nonstandard shoulder width. Refer to HDM §2.6.2.1 and Exhibit 2-1a.

§2.7

STANDARDS

Source: NYSDOT Highway Design Manual



https://www.dot.ny.gov/divisions/engineering/structures/manuals/bridge-manual-usc

courtney.sudak

Text Box

Source: NYSDOT Highway Design Manual





Source: NYSDOT Highway Design Manual



courtney.sudak

Text Box

Source: NYSDOT Highway Design Manual





Sight Distance Calculations





Location:

Hartland Road at Proposed Solar Driveway

STOPPING SIGHT DISTANCE:

STOPPING SIGHT DISTANCE FROM SOUTH

Inputs

Calculations

Inputs

Calculations

V=speed, mph = 55
G=percent of grade = 0
t=brake reaction time t= 25
a=deceleration rate, ft/sec? a= 11.2
Brake Reaction Distance 1.47Vt 202 feet
Braking Distance V%/30((a/32.2)+G 289.9 feet
Stopping Sight Distance = 147Vt + V2/30[(a/32,2)+G] 495 feet
STOPPING SIGHT DISTANCE FROM NORTH
V=speed, mph = 55
G=percent of grade = 0
t=brake reaction time t= 25
a=deceleration rate, ft/sec? a= 11.2
Brake Reaction Distance 1.47Vt 202 feet
Braking Distance V%30((a/32.2)+G) 289.9 feet
Stopping Sight Distance = 1.47Vt + V?/30[(a/32.2)+G] 495 feet

(Design Speed)
(%)

(Design Speed)
(%)

Source: A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, 2018, Seventh Edition. prepared by AASHTO, p. 3-4 to 3-5.

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE:

INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE - LEFT FROM MINOR APPROACH - TO THE SOUTF

Inputs

Calculations

Inputs

Calculations

V= design speed, mph V= 55 (Design Speed)
t=time gap for minor road vehicle to enter the major road t= 7.50 (choose value based on Table 1)
Int. Sight Distance = 1.47Vt 610 feet
Table 1 - Time Gap Factors
Number of
Grade of | Additional
Time Gap’, t (sec) Minor Lanes to Adjusted Time Gap, t
Design Vehicle for Grades </=3% Approach Cross (sec)
passenger car 7.5 0% 0 7.50
single-unit truck 9.5 0% 0 9.50
combination truck 11.5 0% 0 11.50
INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTANCE - LEFT FROM MINOR APPROACH - TO THE NORTF
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

Notes:

1.Time Gap values are applicable for major roads with grades 3 percent or less and no median and a minor street approach with a grade of 3 percent or less. Otherwise, the table values should be adju
*If the minor street has an upward grade of more than 3 percent then add 0.2 sec. to t for each percent grade (including the first 3 percent).
**Increase t by 0.5 seconds (for passenger cars) or 0.7 seconds (for trucks) for every additional lane from the left, in excess of one, to be crossed by the turning vehicle.
***If the major approach is a divided highway with a median not wide enough to store the design vehicle, then the median width should be converted to equivalent lanes.

Source: A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, 2018, Seventh Edition. prepared by AASHTO, p. 9-42 to 9-47.
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Sight Distance Tables





AASHTO Sight Distance

Scenario 1: Stopping Sight Distance on Level Roadways

Scenario 2: Stopping Sight Distance on Grades





Scenario 3: Intersection Sight Distance — Left Turn from Stop

Scenario 4: Intersection Sight Distance — Right Turn from Stop





Scenario 5: Intersection Sight Distance — Left Turn from Major Road





Truck Haul Routes





Regional Map to Interstate Highway Systems
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Truck Routes
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We welcome your feedback on the anticipated road use agreements that will be required for the
Facility.

Please reach out if you require additional information and if you would like to discuss this request
with you further.

Thank you,
Linda

P.S. we have received the information you provided in a separate email related to County’s solar
panel recycling requirements and will be incorporating that information into Exhibit 24 of the
Application, which addresses Local Law requirements.

From: Garret A. Meal <Garret.Meal@niagaracounty.com>

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 10:59 AM

To: Sudak, Courtney <COURTNEY.SUDAK@tetratech.com>

Cc: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard @tetratech.com>; David W. Koplas

<David.Koplas@niagaracounty.com>; Norman D. Allen <Norman.Allen@niagaracounty.com>
Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - County Road Use Agreement (ORES Matter No. 22-00026)

/\ CAUTION: This email originated from an external sender. Verify the source before opening links or
attachments. A\

Do you have a map of the project area and a summary of the proposed facilities?

Garret A. Meal, P.E.

Commissioner

Niagara County Department Of Public Works
Philo J. Brooks Building

59 Park Avenue

Lockport, New York 14094

716-439-7242

E-mail: Garret. Meal@NiagaraCounty.com

From: Sudak, Courtney <COURTNEY.SUDAK@tetratech.com>

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 10:52 AM

To: Garret A. Meal <Garret.Meal@niagaracounty.com>

Cc: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard @tetratech.com>; David W. Koplas
<David.Koplas@niagaracounty.com>; Norman D. Allen <Norman.Allen@niagaracounty.com>

Subject: RE: Somerset Solar Facility - County Road Use Agreement (ORES Matter No. 22-00026)

[EXTERNAL MESSAGE]
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This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open

attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
- Niagara County IT

Thank you very much, Garret! We will let ORES know the County is looking into this item.

David — please let us know if you need any project-related materials from the Developer to complete
your review.

Thank you,
Courtney

Courtney E. Sudak, PE | Project Manager
Pronouns: she, her, hers
Direct (508) 786-2267 | Main (508) 786-2200 | courtney.sudak@tetratech.com
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message and then delete it from your system.
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From: Garret A. Meal <Garret.Meal@niagaracounty.com>

Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 10:48 AM

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

| have passed this question along to the County Attorney’s office for clarification and have not heard
back yet. Since we have no information on this project, we will need more time to evaluate.

In the meantime, | will be out of the office from July 29-August 7. Our County Engineer Norman
Allen will be available to respond if information comes through during that time.

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
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Sent: Friday, July 28, 2023 10:21 AM
To: Garret A. Meal <Garret.Meal@niagaracounty.com>

Cc: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>
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

Good Morning Garret,

| wanted to follow up with you on my email below. We need to submit a response to ORES on this
item next week and were hoping you could confirm whether or not the County would require a Road
Use Agreement for the Somerset Solar’s construction phase operations.

We greatly appreciate your help in this matter. Please reach out if you have any questions.

Thank you!

Courtney E. Sudak, PE | Project Manager
Pronouns: she, her, hers
Direct (508) 786-2267 | Main (508) 786-2200 | courtney.sudak@tetratech.com

This message, including any attachments, may include privileged, confidential and/or inside information. Any distribution or use of this
communication by anyone other tha | entis prohibited and may be unlawful. If you are not the intended recipient,
please notify the sender by replying to this message and then delete it from your system.

I

From: Sudak, Courtney

Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2023 11:33 AM

To: garret.meal@niagaracounty.com

Cc: Rivard, Linda <Linda.Rivard@tetratech.com>

Subject: Somerset Solar Facility - County Road Use Agreement (ORES Matter No. 22-00026)

Hi Garret,

| just left you a voicemail. Tetra Tech is a consultant for AES for the permitting of their proposed
Somerset Solar Facility project in Niagara County. As part of their response to the project’s 94-c
Permit Application filing, the Office of Renewable Energy Siting (ORES) has asked us to determine if a
road use agreement (RUA) will be required by the County for this project. Can you please confirm if
an RUA will be required or provide the contact info if this request should be made to another County
office? If you need additional information, please let me know.

Thank you in advance for your prompt response to this request.

Thank you!

Courtney E. Sudak, PE | Project Manager
Pronouns: she, her, hers
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Tetra Tech | Leading with Science” | United States Infras

100 Nickerson Road, Marlborough, MA 017

“ ﬂ m Please consider the environment before printing. Read more

@ TETRA TECH

Notice: This electronic transmission is intended for the sole use of the individual or entity to which it
is addressed and may contain confidential, privileged or otherwise legally protected information. If
you are not the intended recipient, or if you believe you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any use, disclosure, copying, distribution, or the taking of any action in reliance
on the contents of this information, is strictly prohibited. Niagara County is not responsible for the
content of any external hyperlink referenced in this email or any email. IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS
TRANSMISSION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY THE SENDER IMMEDIATELY BY EMAIL AND DELETE THE
ORIGINAL MESSAGE ALONG WITH ANY PAPER OR ELECTRONIC COPIES. Thank you for your
cooperation.

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
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